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Stage Classification   Days Past Due

Stage 1    Less than 30 days

Stage 2    Between 30 - 90 days

Stage 3    Above 90 days

Stage Classification   Forbearance Flag

Stage 1    No Forbearance

Stage 2    Forbearance granted

Stage Classification           Prudential Classification

Stage 1              PERFORMING

Stage 2              WATCHLIST

Stage 3               SUBSTANDARD, 
               DOUBTFUL, LOST
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Stage Classification            Credit Rating Migration

Stage 1              Rating  downgrade of 
              not more than 2 notches 
              since initial recognition

Stage 2               Rating downgrade of 
               more than 2 notches 
                               since initial recognition

Stage 3               Default
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Hajara Adeola is the Chairman, Board of Directors of 
LOTUS Bank Limited.

Prior to founding Lotus Capital, she was the Director, 
CCT Islamic Finance at UBS Warburg heading their 
London Islamic Finance Desk. Prior to joining UBS, she 
was a Convertible Bond Research Analyst at BNP 
Paribas, London.

She is a seasoned professional with close to three full 
decades of international experience in research & 
analysis, investment management, Corporate Finance 
and Islamic Finance. She holds a B.Sc. in Pharmacology 
from King's College, London, an M.Sc. in Finance from 
Durham University where she specialized in Islamic 
Finance and an MBA in International Management from 
Exeter University, UK.

Hajara was the first President of the Fund Manager's 
Association of Nigeria and is a West African Fellow of 
the Aspen Leadership Initiative. She is also the 
Chairperson of the Securities & Exchange Commission’s 
non-interest capital market 10-year master plan 
committee and a Director at The Aliko Dangote 
Foundation.
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Kafilat Araoye holds a first degree in History from the University of 
Ife, now Obafemi Awolowo University (1985), and an M.Sc. in 
Industrial Relations & Personnel Management from the University of 
Lagos 
(1987), graduating as the best student in her class. She also holds 
Islamic Finance certifications issued by the Ethica Institute of 
Islamic Finance, the Chartered Institute for Securities & Investment
/Bahrain Institute of Banking & Finance, as well as the Islamic 
Research & Training Institute. She has attended various executive 
management courses at the Cranfield School of Management (UK), 
Lagos Business School, Institute of Management Development 
(Switzerland) and INSEAD (France), Ross Business School, 
University of Michigan  (USA). She is certified in specialized Banking 
courses, conferences and Seminars, among them are the Structured 
Trade Finance Course by Euromoney U.K, Payments, Clearing and 
Settlement Conference by National Association of Clearing Houses, 
USA (2006, 2007, 2008), International Banker's Seminar, USA, South 
Africa, Swift regional conference.

She started her career in 1988 at National Oil and Chemicals 
Marketing Company Plc (now Conoil Nigeria Plc), and moved in 
1990 to Guaranty Trust Bank Plc, as the pioneer head of Human 
Resources. She was part of the GTBank team that went to Jordan for 
the implementation of its core banking application amongst other 
critical assignments executed for the Bank. She left with accolades 
in 2015 as General Manager but continued to consult for banks and 
other sectors through her consulting outfit until 2018 when she was 
appointed as the MD Designate for LOTUS Bank then in formation.

Having put close to three full decades into banking, Kafilat has 
expertise in virtually all areas of core banking, with emphasis on 
International and Domestic Operations, Payments, General 
Management, Business Development, Risk Management, Human 
Resources, and Strategy.

She was part of several Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
Implementation Committees on some Settlement and Payment 
solutions between 2002 and 2007 and represented Nigeria at the 
Banking Techniques and Practice committee of the International 
Chamber of Commerce, between 2006 and 2011. She a was member 
Chartered Institute of Banker's Committee on Capacity building and 
Certification from 2014 to 2020 and is currently a  member, 
Advocacy & Strategy Committee of the Chartered Institute of 
Bankers of Nigeria.

Kafilat has served, and currently serves as Member of the Governing 
Board of many institutions (secondary and university), amongst 
them Fountain University Oshogbo; Currently member, Board of 
Crescent Schools, Victoria Island; and City of Knowledge Academy. 
She was member as well as Elder's Council, Al Muhtudeen Islamic 
Foundation (formerly Muslim Youth Forum).

BOARD MEMBERS
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Alhassan Abdulkarim has over two decades of 
professional experience in the Banking Industry that 
cuts across Commercial and Corporate Banking, 
Operations, International Trade Finance, Islamic  
Finance, Product Development, and Structured finance.

He has an impeccable track record of working for some 
of the top-rated banks in Nigeria ranging from Access 
Bank, Guaranty Trust Bank, JAIZ Bank, Continental 
Trust Bank (now United Bank of Africa-UBA). Prior to his 
appointment at LOTUS Bank, he served as the Assistant 
General Manager and regional manager (Lagos & 
Southern Nigeria) at JAIZ Bank. He played active roles 
in liaising with the bank’s Sharia Advisory Council, 
Heading the Product Development team as well as the 
International Corresponding Banking Relationship 
Team.

He is an honorary member of the Chartered Institute of 
Bankers of Nigeria (CIBN), a member of the Nigeria 
Institute of Management (NIM), Commodity Brokers 
Association of Nigeria (CBAN), and a fellow at the 
Institute of Credit Administrators (ICA).

He is an alumnus of Bayero University, Kano where he 
obtained his B.Sc. in Microbiology and dual Master's 
degree in Islamic Banking & Finance and Business 
Administration. He also possesses a Postgraduate 
Diploma in Management from the same University.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Toyin Kekere-Ekun has over 20 years of financial 
experience that cuts across Corporate Banking, Asset 
and Liability Management, Financial Markets, 
Operations, and Islamic Finance.

Toyin is the Chief Executive Officer of Lotus Financial 
Services, a pioneer ethical and halal Financial Advisory 
Institution. Prior to her position as CEO, she was Group 
Head Business Development and Operations of Lotus 
Financial Capital.

Toyin began her career in Guaranty Trust Bank where 
she worked in Treasury and Corporate Banking Group. 
From there she joined Stanbic IBTC Bank as the 
Segment Manager, Islamic Finance and later joined 
Linetrale Petroleum Limited as a General Manager of 
Finance.

She holds a B.Sc. Accounting from the University of 
Lagos and a Master of Science from Cranfield School of  
Management and has an FCA from the Institute of 
Chartered Accounts of Nigeria.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Adeoye Fadeyibi has two decades of professional 
experience in the Power industry. He started his career 
at General Electric (GE) where he held different 
positions from 2000 to 2013. He served as a Gas 
Turbines Technical Advisor and rose to the position of 
Sales Director for GE Energy covering  the Middle East 
and African Regions.

He obtained his bachelor's degree in Mechanical 
Engineering in the year 2000 at the State University of 
New York, SUNY Buffalo, New York, and the General 
Electric Power Systems University in Schenectady, New 
York where he completed his training in turbine power 
systems and applied knowledge obtained towards 
developing the African Turbines/Generator Field 
resources.

As his career advanced, Fadeyibi continued to serve in 
increasingly strategic roles. These included his 
membership in Nigeria's team of leaders tasked with 
developing Nigeria's partnership structure to address 
"overall power delivery solutions" deploying his 
formidable project management expertise to ensure 
power delivery deadlines were met between 2008 - 
2010.

In 2013, he was appointed Managing Director/ Chief 
Executive Officer of Transcorp Power Limited (TPL), 
Ughelli, Delta State, a 1,000MW generation Company 
and one of the six-generation assets of the erstwhile 
Power Holding Company of Nigeria (PHCN). Under his 
direction and a testament to his assiduous work ethics, 
TPL grew from 160MW of available capacity at 
handover (1st November 2013)  to 634MW (by 
December 2015).

After making his mark in the Generation section, Engr. 
Adeoye moved downstream along the Electricity Power 
Sector's value chain into the Electricity Distribution 
sub-sector where he assumed office as the  MD/CEO of 
Eko Electricity Distribution Company (EKEDC) on 1st 
January 2018, a position he still retains till this date.

 

BOARD MEMBERS
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Nuruddeen Lemu is a Director of Research and Training 
at the Dawah Institute of Nigeria and the Assistant 
General Secretary of Islamic Education Trust (IET), 
Minna. He is the Technical Adviser, Nigerian 
Environmental Society, Niger State branch; a Founding 
Member of the Regional Centre for Expertise, Minna; 
and a member of the Advisory Board of the New 
Horizons College, Minna. He has been a Member, 
National Awards Committee, Ford Foundation Jubilee 
Transparency Awards, Nigeria and Teacher Trainer, 
Noor Al-Houda Islamic College, Sydney, Australia.

Nuruddeen is a Director of the Development Initiative of 
West Africa (DIWA), the Inter-Faith Activity and 
Partners for Peace (IFAPP), and a member of various 
committees of Jama'tu Nasril Islam (JNI) and the 
Da'wah Coordination Council of Nigeria (DCCN). He 
was one of those nominated by the Nigeria Supreme 
Council for Islamic Affairs (NSCIA) to represent 
Nigerian Muslims at the last National Conference 
(CONFAB 2014). He has also been an Independent 
Director of Lotus Capital Limited since inception in 
2006.

He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Agriculture from 
Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria, Nigeria, an MSc. 
Resource Management from Edinburgh University, 
United Kingdom, is a Fellow of the Africa Leadership 
Initiative of West Africa (ALIWA), and of the Aspen 
Leadership Institute, Colorado, USA.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Sansadeen Awosanya is the Chairman of Rostrum 
Investment and Securities Ltd (Member of Nigerian 
Stock Exchange). Prior to his retirement from the 
Nigerian Army after 30 years.

He is a member of the Association of Certified National 
Accountants of Nigeria (CNA), Member of Nigeria 
Institute of Management (MNIM) and a member of the 
prestigious National Institute of Policy and Strategic 
Studies (NIPSS) where he earned his MNI. Whilst in the 
Army he served as Chief  Paymaster General and earned 
the following medals: Forces Service Star (FSS), 
Meritorious Service Star (MSS), Distinguished Service 
Star (DSS) and United Nation Interim Forces in Lebanon 
(UNIFIL).

He holds a pre-military diploma in Accounting from The 
Polytechnic, Ibadan as well as a B.Sc. from Gwent 
College of Higher Education, United Kingdom, a 
Diploma from University of Lagos; an MBA from Federal 
University of Technology, Akure and a PhD in 
Accounting from Marlborough University, Honolulu, 
USA and a PhD from Olabisi Onabanjo University.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Muhammad 
Babangida 
(Non-Executive Director)

Muhammad Babangida is the Chairman Profile Group 
and the Executive Director of El-Amin International  
School. He has over 20 years business experience 
working in various industries including Banking, Real 
Estate, Education, Security Consultancy and Oil and 
Gas.

Muhammad has served on the Board of Unity Bank and 
NEXIM Bank while also Heading the Board Committee 
of the Board on Finance and General Management, 
Credit and Strategy.

He is an alumnus of European University, Switzerland; 
EU Business School; Harvard Business School; The 
Robert Gordon University; University of Liverpool, UK 
and has a Doctorate in Education from the Walden 
University.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Moinuddin Malim is an acknowledged authority on 
Global Islamic Banking with over 25 years of experience 
in the industry. He is the founder and Managing Partner 
of Alternative International Management Services- a 
consultancy service that addresses the global Islamic 
finance market and licensed by the Dubai Economic 
Department.

He is a seasoned professional with international 
experience in Financial Advisory, Capital Markets 
Advisory, Product and Strategic Advisory, as well as 
Retail and Wholesale Banking. 

He served as the Head of Corporate and Investment 
Banking at Badr Al - Islami, and later rose to the position 
of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) /Head of Islamic 
Banking for Mashreq Bank, both of which belong to the 
Mashreq Group of companies, Dubai.

In the space of his professional career, he has also 
served in top-tier positions as the Senior Vice President 
and Head of Asset Management & Capital Markets, 
Dubai Islamic Bank and Managing Director at 
Millennium Investment Company, a Dubai Islamic 
Bank-owned company.

He holds a B.Sc. from the University of Karachi, Pakistan 
a BBA in Finance, and an MBA in Finance and Int'l 
Business from the University of Toledo, Ohio, USA.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Nuratu Batagarawa is a seasoned professional 
administrator with more than a decade of experience in 
the Civil Service. She started her career in the Public 
Sector in April 1985 at the National Institute for Policy 
and Strategic Studies, Kuru, Nigeria (NIPSS) as a junior 
research fellow.

In 1992, she was appointed Director, Federal Mortgage 
Bank of Nigeria, a position she occupied until 2003 
when she transferred her service to the Federal Civil 
Service as Deputy Director. She also served as Director 
for the Federal Service, and Ministry of Police Affairs, 
Police services up until she was deployed to the Office 
of the Head of the Civil Service of the Federation as 
Permanent Secretary.

In 2017, she was deployed to the Nigerian Ministry of 
Defense as the Permanent Secretary, a groundbreaking 
feat, as she is the first and only female to have ever 
served in that capacity till date.

She obtained her B.Sc. degree from Ahmadu Bello 
University, Zaria and has a master’s degree international 
politics from the University of Lancaster, United 
Kingdom.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Mohammed Abubakar is a seasoned professional with 
dynamic skills in people management, leadership,
marketing and  strategy.

He obtained his bachelor’s degree in management in 
the year 2010 from the prestigious Webster University, 
Geneva. He holds a master’s degree in International 
Business from Hult International Business School, 
London and an MBA in International Management from 
the University of Wales, Cardiff. He has also attended 
various Leadership and Management courses both 
home and abroad.

He started his career in Adama Beverages Limited, Yola- 
a wholly owned Nigerian food and beverage company, 
as an Intern in 2011 and rose to the position of General 
Manager, Finance and General Services in 2012, a 
position he holds till date.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Alhaji Mustapha Ado is a Nigerian businessman, 
philanthropist, industrialist and economist. He is the 
founder and Chairman of Ammasco International 
Limited, which is one of the top lubricants producing 
companies in Nigeria and one of the fastest-growing 
lubricants blending plants in West Africa.

He is also the Chairman of Ammasco Petrochemicals 
Ltd and the founder of a number of businesses within 
the oil and gas and manufacturing sectors in Nigeria.

He attended Gobirawa Primary School and Gwale 
Secondary School, Kano respectively, after which he 
moved on to Kano State Polytechnic where he 
graduated with HND in Accounting. He then moved on 
to attend engineering courses on lubricants in the 
United Kingdom, Germany and the United States of 
America.

BOARD MEMBERS
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Shaykh Haytham Tamim is a specialist in Shariah 
Sciences and Islamic Finance. He studied in Beirut, 
Damascus, Karachi, Bahrain and Dubai. He taught at the 
Islamic University of Beirut and in the UK.

He is the founder and director of Shariah Solutions 
Limited, a consultancy firm based in the UK. 

He is also the Chairman and founder of Utrujj 
Foundation which is a leading Islamic Education 
Institution in the UK. He is the Mufti of the Lebanese 
Sunni community in the UK, and Khateeb at the Muslim 
World League in London. He is also a member of the 
Islamic Finance and Banking Advisory Board at the 
University of East London’s Centre for Islamic Finance 
and Banking.

Shaykh Haytham Tamim has served on the board of 
several Islamic financial institutions such as the 
Gatehouse Bank an Islamic Investment Bank in the UK, 
the Europe Arab Bank, Islamic REIT Fund (Inovalis) and 
Inovalis.

He was named among the 100 influential Muslims in the 
UK by the Emerald network.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
OF EXPERTS 
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Professor Ahmad Murtala attended the School for 
Arabic Studies in Nigeria where he had his Grade II 
certificate. He then attended Aminu School for Islamic 
Legal Studies, Kano where he graduated with 
Distinction. He had his Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Islamic Studies from Bayero University Kano Nigeria 
where he graduated with Second Class Upper grade. He 
then proceeded to obtain his Master of Arts and his 
Ph.D degree in Islamic Studies from the same University. 
He became a Professor of Islamic Studies in 2016.

He started his lecturing career at the Bayero University 
Kano Nigeria in 2002, where he lectured in the Islamic 
Studies and Shariah department under the Faculty of 
Arts and Islamic Studies. He was the Deputy Dean of 
the Faculty of Arts and Islamic Studies between 2010 to 
2014, and he is currently the Head of Islamic Studies and 
Shariah department.

He has won various awards including the University 
Scholarship for the Best Student in 1994/95 session, and 
Ado Bayero prize for the Best Final year student in 
Islamic Studies in 1995/96 during his undergraduate 
study. He has presented in over 40 conferences, 
published 10 books, and written over 40 articles in 
various journals. He has various newspaper articles as 
well as public lecture to his credit.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
OF EXPERTS 
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Dr Marjan attended the International Islamic University 
Malaysia where she obtained her B.Sc (Hons) degree in 
Islamic Revealed Knowledge and Heritage (Fiqh and 
Usul-l-Fiqh) in 1998. She had her M.Sc. and Ph.D also in 
Islamic Revealed Knowledge and Heritage (Fiqh and 
Usul-l-Fiqh) in 2001 and 2005 respectively.

She has worked at the International Shari'ah Research 
Academy for Islamic Finance from 2013 to date where 
she has held several roles ranging from Head of 
Research Quality Assurance Office, Senior Researcher, 
and currently Director of Research. She has tutored at 
the Faculty of Law and Shari’ah at the Universiti Sains 
Islam Malaysia with specialization in issues of Ijtihad 
(Intellectual Reasoning), Islamic Jurisprudence (Usul 
al-Fiqh), Islamic Laws of Transaction (Fiqh al-Muamalat) 
and Islamic Criminal Laws (Fiqh al-Jinayah). She has 
also served on different shariah boards including: MBSB 
Bank Berhad, RHB Islamic Berhad, Maybank Islamic 
Berhad, SME Bank Berhad, and she is currently on the 
Shariah board of Bank Negara Malaysia.

She has published articles in both international and 
local journals and has produced several research papers 
on Islamic finance.

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
OF EXPERTS 
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MANAGEMENT

Babatunde Lawal 
(Acting Chief Financial Officer)

Tunde is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (FCA). 
He was on the board of CBN’s Payment System Vision 2020 and CBN’s 
Automated Clearing House (ACH), Cheque & Instant Payment Scheme. 
He has 20 years’ experience in the banking industry with very sound 
knowledge of International Trade Finance, Payments Systems and Banking 
Operations especially Domestic Operations, Treasury Operations, 
Electronic Business Settlements, Electronic Payments,and cheque 
clearing operations. He is well experienced in identifying operational 
risks and proffering solutions in the banking industry.

Usman Okoya 
(Divisional Head, Public Sector & Agency Banking)
Usman is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
(ACCA) with distinguished qualitative experience and comprehensive skills 
in Treasury, Management Reporting, General Accounting, Budgeting, 
Costing, and Financial Planning and Analysis.

Funso Tooki 
(Divisional Head, Corporate Services)

Funso has over 24 years' experience in various functional areas in banking. 
He has developed core competencies including change/transformation 
management, organizational development, capacity building, project 
management, culture revitalization, positive leadership, policy formulation, 
customer experience management, public relations, industrial relations and 
strategic performance management.
He is an Associate of the Nigerian Institute of Public Relations (ANIPR), the 
Chartered Institute of Personnel Management of Nigeria (ACIPM), a senior 
Honorary Member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers of Nigeria (HCIB), a 
member of the Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM), a 
Certified KPI Professional & Practitioner (C-KPI), and a trained Sustainability 
trainer.

Biyi Ogundepo 
(Head of Treasury)
Biyi has 20 years’ experience in two of Nigeria's largest banks. He has worked in 
Nigeria, Zambia and has extensive knowledge of financial markets in developed 
and emerging markets. He brings to the team hands-on experience in Treasury, 
Structured Trades and Derivatives,  Risk Management, Project Management 
and Sales. He has won numerous awards in his career.
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Uyoyou Ewhe 
(Chief Compliance Officer)

Uyoyou had a distinguished banking career at the systems and control department
in Guaranty Trust Bank. He also worked at Access Bank Plc, where he occupied the
position of Head, Regulatory Complianceand Financial Crimes Reporting & Monitoring
Uyoyou Ewhe obtained his first degree from the University of Lagos in 1994 and
Master’s in Business Administration from the Lagos State University in 2008
specializing in Financial Management. He is a Certified Anti-Money Laundering
Specialist (CAMS) and a member of other professional bodies in the financial sector 
such as Compliance Institute, Nigeria, Chartered Institute of Bankers of Nigeria, etc.
He was one of the members of working group that gave birth to the Association 
of Chief Compliance Officers of Banks in Nigeria (ACCOBIN) forum in April 2007. 
Uyoyou Ewhe has undertaken various trainings both in Nigeria and abroad, one 
of which is at the Wharton Business School in Pennsylvania, USA.

Riskiah Adam-Adedimeji
(Group Head, Retail Banking)

Riskiah is a trained project and marketing professional with wide experience in 
Retail and Risk Management. A graduate of Accounting and Management, a 
Chartered Banker, Chartered Marketer and a holder of master’s degree in business 
administrations (MBA), her banking career has spanned over two decades across 
various functions such as Banking Operations, Business Development, Credit 
Administration and Branch Management. Riskiah held various Branch Managerial 
roles, including Business Manager, First Bank -Ikeja Industrial Estate Branch (April 
2021 till Dec 2021); Business Manager, First Bank -Abule Egba Branch (January 2018 
till April 2021); Business Manager, First Bank -Iju Branch (January 2013 to January
2018); Head Quick Service Point (QSP) Abattoir, First Bank Agege Branch (2009 – 
2010); Relationship Manager, First Bank Oshodi Branch (2006 – 2008) and Ikeja
 Industrial Branch (2010 -2012); Branch Operations – Trade Bank (Now United Bank 
of Africa - UBA) (Jan 2001-Dec. 2005).

She is a recipient of several professional and social service awards including 
outstanding managerial awards.



The Directors present their periodic report on the affairs of LOTUS Bank Limited together with the 
auditors' report for the year ended 31st December 2021.

(a)   Legal form 
LOTUS Bank Limited was incorporated as a private limited liability company on 8th July 2020 and 
was issued a regional license by the Central Bank of Nigeria on 25th May 2021 to operate as a 
regional non-interest bank. The Bank commenced operation on 7th July 2021.

(b)  Principal activity 
LOTUS Bank Limited is a newly licensed bank that was formed to build partnerships with customers 
to last for a lifetime. The bank’s business as a non-interest ethical Bank is the offering of various shariah 
compliant financial products and services through its various groups such as retail banking, corporate 
banking and treasury. The bank is driven by ethics, innovation, superior service, and a fresh approach
to non-interest banking. With new digital solutions, a millennial generation coming into maturity, 
LOTUS Bank is bringing to market innovative and comprehensive shariah-compliant financial solutions 
in investment banking, consumer banking, private banking and wealth management.

(c)  Operating results for the period ended 31st December 2021
Highlights of the Bank’s operating results for the period are as follows:
All amounts in thousands of Nigerian Naira unless otherwise stated

           N’Million

 Gross Earnings        985

 Loss Before Tax        (1,192)

 Taxation         582

 Loss After Tax         (610)

(d)  Dividend
No dividend payment has been recommended by the directors for the financial period ended 31st 
December 2021.

(e)   Directors’ shareholding 
  
           
 
 Hajara Adeola         800,000,000
 Sansadeen Awosanya        500,000,000
 Fadeyibi Adeoye        500,000,000
 Lotus Capital Limited        404,000,000
 Lotus Nominees Limited       920,000,000
 Adama Beverages        800,000,000
 Profile International Limited       400,000,000
 Abubakar Yakubu         160,000,000  
              4,484,000,000  
 
           

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Direct
Number of Ordinary
Shares Held
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 (f)  Directors Fees    
 The Board of Directors proposed and presented their fees at the General Meeting for approval.

(g)  Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Information relating to changes in property, plant and equipment is provided in Note 10 to the
Financial Statement.

(h)   Shareholding analysis  
The shareholding pattern of the Bank as at 31st December 2021 is as stated below:
 
    No. of shareholders Percentage of shareholders No. Of holdings
     1  17.84%    800,000,000
     1  17.84%    800,000,000
     1  11.15%    500,000,000
     1  11.15%    500,000,000
     1  8.92%    400,000,000
     1  9.01%    404,000,000
     11  20.52%   920,000,000
      1  3.60%    160,000,000  
     18  100%    4,484,000,000

(i)  Donations and charitable gifts
During the period under review, the Bank took steps towards identifying with the aspirations of various 
sections of the society through donations and charitable gifts. The Bank donated a total sum of 
N20,505,000.00 as of 31st December 2021 as charitable contributions to various initiatives and proj-
ects. It comprises contributions to educational organizations, health institution, community support 
and entrepreneurship initiative, amongst others. A list of the beneficiaries and the amounts donated is 
shown in the table below:

Sector    Beneficiary/Project     Amount

Education   Educational Material     N255,000.00 
    Conference      N7,000,000.00
    School Project      N3,150,000.00

Community Support  Orphanage sponsorship    N1,000,000.00 
    Entrepreneurship Development Project  N2,000,000.00
    Festival of Words – QFEST 2021   N2,000,000.00 
    

Health    Entry Level Programme CSR Project    N5,100,000.00 

(j)  Post balance sheet events
There were no events after the reporting date which could have a material effect on the state of
affairs of the bank as at 31st December 2021 and the loss for the period ended on that date that
have not been adequately provided for or disclosed. 
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(k)  Human resources policy
 a. Recruitment
The Bank conforms with all regulatory requirements in the employment of staff, whilst also ensuring 
that only fit and proper persons are approved for appointment to the board and top management 
positions. All prescribed pre-employment screening for prospective employees and other requirements
for regulatory confirmation of top management appointments were duly implemented.

b. Diversity in employment
The Bank operates a non-discriminatory policy and merit-based processes in employing members 
of its staff into every level and roles, irrespective of the applicant’s state of origin, gender, ethnicity, 
religion and physical condition. 

c. Employment of disabled persons
The Bank has no physically challenged persons in its employment. However, applications for 
employment by physically challenged persons will be fully considered, bearing in mind the 
respective aptitudes and requirements for that role.

d. Health, safety and welfare at work
The Bank places a high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees in their places 
of work. To this end, the Bank provides health insurance to its employees and ensures that places 
of work are kept in good order and care.

e. Employee involvement and training
Lotus Bank Limited places considerable value on its employees and their involvement and contribution 
to matters affecting them as employees and the various factors affecting their performance. This is 
achieved through an open, transparent environment and frequent meetings with senior management
and respective teams within the Bank. The bank also arranges and pays for regular training courses 
and programmes for its employees.

(l)  Audit Committee
In line with the provisions of the Board Charter of the bank, and pursuant to Section 404 of the 
Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, the bank constituted for itself an Audit Committee 
comprising of three (3) Non-Executive Directors, one of which is Independent, as follows:
i. Mr. Ghulam Moinuddin Malim (Independent Non-Executive Director)- Chairman
ii. Ms. Toyin Kekere-Ekun                               (Non-Executive Director)-   Member
iii. Mr. Muhammed Ibrahim Babangida     (Non-Executive Director)-   Member

The functions carried out by the Audit Committee are as stated in Section 404 (7) of the Companies 
and Allied Matters Act 2020.

(m)   Auditor 
The Auditors, Deloitte & Touché have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors. 
In accordance with Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, a resolution will 
be proposed at the Annual General Meeting for their reappointment and to authorize the Directors 
to determine their remuneration.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
 

Fatai Ola Bakare
Company Secretary
FRC/2021/002/00000024551
30A Adetokunbo Ademola Street, Victoria Island, Lagos, Nigeria 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

For the preparation and approval of the financial statements
The Directors of Lotus Bank Limited accept responsibility for the preparation of the financial  statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank as at 31st December 2021, and the results 
of its operations, statement of cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended in compliance 
with the requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Financial Accounting
 Standards issued by AAOIFI and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of the 
Federation of Nigeria, the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, the Banks and Other Financial
 Institutions Act and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Guidelines and Circulars.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:
• properly selecting and applying accounting policies;
• presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, 
 reliable, comparable and understandable information;
• providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are 
 insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events 
 and conditions on the Bank’s financial position and financial performance.

Going Concern:
The Directors have made assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no 
reason to believe the Bank will not remain a going concern in the years ahead.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS BY:

Hajara Adeola       Kafilat Araoye
Chairman       Managing Director/CEO
FRC/2013/IODN/00000002955    FRC/2020/003/00000022115
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CERTIFICATION OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with section 405 of the Companies and Allied Act of Nigeria, the Chief Executive Officer 
and the Chief Financial Officer certify that the financial statements have been reviewed and based on 
our knowledge, the:

i. audited financial statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to 
 state a material fact, which would make the statements misleading, in the light of the 
 circumstances under which such statement was made, and
ii. audited financial statements and all other financial information included in the statements fairly 
 present, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the company
 as of and for, the periods covered by the audited financial statements;

We state that management and directors:
i. are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and have designed such 
 internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Bank is made known to 
 the officer by other officers of the Bank, particularly during the period in which the audited 
 financial statement report is being prepared,
ii. Have evaluated the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls within 90 days prior to the date
  of its audited financial statements, and
iii. certify that the Bank’s internal controls are effective as of that date;

We have disclosed:
i. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely 
 affect the Bank’s ability to record, process, summarise and report financial data, and has identified 
 for the Bank’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls, and

ii. whether or not there is any fraud that involves management or other employees who have a 
 significant role in the Bank’s internal control; and

iii. as indicated in the report, whether or not there were significant changes in the internal controls or 
 in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their 
 evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material 
 weaknesses.

The financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31st December 2021 were approved by the 
directors on 23rd March 2022.
 

Kafilat Araoye       Tunde Lawal
Managing Director/CEO     Ag. Chief Financial Officer
FRC/2020/003/00000022115     FRC/2022/01/00000023870
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REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF THE 
BOARD OF LOTUS BANK LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER 2021

DCSL Corporate Services Limited was appointed to undertake an appraisal of the Board of Directors 
of LOTUS Bank Limited (“Lotus Bank”, “the Bank”) for the year-ended 31st December 2021 in line with 
the provisions of Section 2.8 of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) Code of Corporate Governance for 
Banks and Discount Houses in Nigeria (“the CBN Code”), and Principle 14 of the Nigerian Code of 
Corporate Governance, 2018 (NCCG). The evaluation entailed a comprehensive review of the Bank’s 
corporate and statutory documents, the Minutes of Board and Committees meetings, policies currently
in place, other ancillary documents made available to us, Board and Peer Review Surveys administered 
as well as information derived from our interaction with Directors.

The appraisal centered on confirming the level of the Board’s compliance with corporate governance 
practices with particular reference to the provisions of the CBN Code using the following seven key 
corporate governance parameters:

1. Board Structure and Composition

2. Strategy and Planning

3. Board Operations and Effectiveness

4. Measuring and Monitoring of Performance

5. Risk Management and Compliance

6. Corporate Citizenship; and

7. Transparency and Disclosure.

Our review of the corporate governance standards and processes affirm that the Board has 
substantially complied with the provisions of the CBN Code, the Nigerian Code of Corporate 
Governance and other relevant corporate governance standards. 

The activities of the Board and the Bank are also in compliance with corporate governance best practice 
and individual Directors remain committed to enhancing the Bank’s growth. Details of our key findings
and recommendations are contained in our Report. The attendance for the Board and Committee 
meetings held during the financial year ended 31st December 2021 were as follows:

DCSL Corporate Services Limited
235 Ikorodu Road
Ilupeju, P.O. Box 965
Marina, Lagos, Nigeria

Tel: +234 809 0381 864
info@dcsl.com.ng
www.dcsl.com.ng

RC NO. 352393 

Abuja Office:
Suite A05, The Statement 
Hotel, Plot 1002, 1st Avenue
Off Shehu Shagari Way
Central Business District Abuja,
Nigeria

Tel: +234 809 0381 861 

January 2021
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Mr. Nuruddeen Lemu

Mr. Muhammad Babangida

Mr. Mustapha Ado Non-Executive
Director
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Yours faithfully,

For: DCSL Corporate Services Limited
 

Bisi Adeyemi Managing Director
FRC/2013/NBA/00000002716

Directors:    Abel Ajayi (Chairman)     Obi Ogbechi        Adeniyi Obe
  Dr. Anino Emuwa      Adebisi Adeyemi (Managing Director)  
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REPORT OF STATUTORY AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
To the Members of Lotus Bank Limited

In accordance with the provision of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA) 
2020, the members of the Audit Committee of Lotus Bank Limited hereby report on the financial 
statements for the year ended 31st December 2021 as follows:

We have exercised our statutory functions under Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters 
Act, 2020 and acknowledge the co-operation of management staff in the conduct of these 
responsibilities.

We are of the opinion that the accounting and reporting policies of the Bank are in accordance with
the legal requirements and agreed ethical practices and that the scope and planning of both the external 
and internal audits for the year ended 31st December 2021 were satisfactory and reinforce the Bank’s
internal control systems.

We have deliberated with the external auditors, who have confirmed that necessary co- operation 
was received from management in the course of their statutory audit and we are satisfied with 
management’s responses thereon and with the effectiveness of the Bank’s system of accounting 
and internal control.

Members of the Statutory Audit & Risk Management Committee

1. Mr. Malim Moinuddin                Chairman
2. Ms. Toyin Kekere-Ekun  Member
3. Mr. Muhammad Babangida  Member

The Bank Secretary serves as the Secretary to the Committee.

------------------------------------------------------------
Mr. Malim Moinuddin
FRC/2022/03/00000023951
Chairman, Statutory Audit & Risk Committee Lagos
March 21, 2022
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
AND WHISTLE BLOWING GUIDELINES

With reference to section 5.2.8 of the Code of Corporate Governance for Banks and 
Discount Houses in Nigeria and Section 4.1.1 of the whistleblowing guidelines issued 
by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN), I confirm that no breach of corporate governance 
code was observed in 2021 and no whistleblowing case was reported.

Uyoyoukaro Ewhe
Chief Compliance Officer
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COMPLAINTS AND FEEDBACK

The Feedback Channels/Customer Touch Points
Feedback is provided by our esteemed customers from the various touch points listed below: 

• Emails, letters, and the Bank’s website
• The Bank’s Contact Center
• Social Media feedback platforms
• The Customer Service Desk at all the branches
• The Whistle Blowing link on the Bank’s website.

We value customers’ feedback and encourage their interaction with the Bank.

Complaints Handling and Resolution
The Contact Center and Customer Service Units of the Bank are responsible for the receipt, investigation, 
and prompt resolution of customers’ complaints. This process will be reviewed periodically to ensure 
the Bank’s aim of effective service delivery is enhanced.

We ensure  that our processes and procedures are in line with the international best practice and
regulatory requirements.

Report to the CBN on Customers’ Complaints 
In line with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) guidelines on resolution of customers’ complaints, the 
Bank provides periodic reports to the CBN.

Below is a breakdown of Complaints received and resolved by the Bank between July and 
December 2021:

Description Number 
Amount disputed 

(N) 
Amount 

refunded (N) 
  2021  2021  2021  
        

Complaints Received  29  782,100  - 
        
Complaints Resolved  29  782,100  782,100  
        
Unresolved Complaints escalated to 

CBN for Intervention  NIL NIL NIL  
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In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful

ADVISORY COMMITTEE OF EXPERTS’ REPORT

To: Shareholders of LOTUS Bank Limited,

Pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 11 of the Guidelines on the Governance of Advisory 
Committee of Experts for Non-Interest (Islamic) Financial Institutions in Nigeria which is in 
line with Section 57 of Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act 1991 (“BOFIA 1991”), the 
Advisory Committee of Experts (ACE) of LOTUS Bank Limited presents to you the Shariah 
Compliance Report of the Annual Report for the financial year ending on 31st December 2021 
(“Financial Year”).

Responsibility of the ACE
In accordance with the Regulatory Requirements and the ACE Charter, the ACE’s responsibility is
stipulated as to:

a. deliberate on the Bank’s products in accordance with the regulations issued by
 the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN).
b. comply with ethical requirements, plan and perform the deliberation to obtain reasonable 
 assurance about the state of Shariah compliance of the Bank.
c. advise regularly on Shariah related matters in the Bank’s business operations.
d. assess the work carried out by Shariah review, audit and risk management which included 
 examining, on a test basis, each type of transaction, the relevant documentation and 
 procedures adopted by the Bank.
e. review the components of the financial statements which required determination by 
 Shariah, such as disposal of non-permissible income.

In performing the above duties, the ACE has received support and cooperation from all levels of 
Management in the Bank, especially the Managing Director and the Shariah Unit.

Shariah Compliance Status of the Bank

We have assessed the works carried out by the Shariah Compliance Review, Shariah Audit and 
Control, which were conducted by way of obtaining all the information and explanation which 
we considered necessary to provide us with enough evidence to give reasonable assurance that 
all transactions by LOTUS Bank did not violate Shariah rules and principles. Thus, we have 
concluded with a reasonable level of confidence, that the Bank’s activities are in compliance 
with Shariah.
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Opinions of the ACE
 
Audited Financial Statements and Reports For the six-month period ended 31st December 2021
 
1. The contracts, transactions and dealings entered into by LOTUS Bank during the year ended 
 31st December 2021 that we have reviewed are in compliance with the Shariah rules and principles;
2. The allocation of profit and charging of losses relating to investment accounts conform to the 
 basis that had been approved by the ACE in accordance with Shariah rules and principles;
3. The ACE of LOTUS Bank has reviewed the financial statement of the Bank, and has taken note 
 that there was no Non-Permissible Income (NPI) by the Bank during the review period. The ACE 
 hereby certifies that the nil amount declared is correct and that there was no NPI to be disposed 
 by the Bank and that the ACE is satisfied by the nil declaration; and
4. The ACE hereby confirms that the operations of LOTUS Bank for the year ended 31st December 
 2021 have been conducted in conformity with the Shariah rules and principles.

The ACE wish to thank the Board of Directors, Management, departments and staff of LOTUS Bank for
their good cooperation with the ACE and their commitment to the non-interest banking practices. 
May Allah’s mercy and blessings be upon you all.

And Allah Knows Best 

Shaykh Haytham Tamim  Chairman      22-03-2022

Dr. Marjan Binti Muhammad  Member       22-03-2022

Prof. Ahmad Murtala   Member       22-03-2022
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P.O. Box 965 Deloitte & Touche
Marina  Civic Towers
Lagos  Plot GA 1,Ozumba Mbadiwe Avenue
Nigeria  Victoria Island Lagos
  Nigeria

  Tel: +234 (1) 904 1700
  www.deloitte.com.ng

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Lotus Bank Limited

Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of Lotus Bank Limited set out on page 57 to 97 which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
period then ended and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Lotus Bank 
Limited as at 31 December 2021, and its financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended 
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Accounting and Auditing 
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI), the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 
(CAMA), Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act (BOFIA),the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria 
Act, 2011 and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria Guideline and Circulars.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibili-
ties under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial statement section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the 
requirements of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ (IESBA), International Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) and 
other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of Financial Statements in Nigeria. 
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and other ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of Financial Statement in Nigeria.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Key Audit Matter
Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current year. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on this matter. The key audit matter below relates to the audit of Lotus Bank Limited’s 
financial statements.



Audited Financial Statements and Reports For the Six-Month period Ended 31 December 2021

LOTUS BANK LIMITED

59

Impairment of Islamic Financing and Investment Assets

As   disclosed   in   note   2.4c   to   the   financial        Our audit procedures to assess the adequacy of 
statements, in line with the provisions of IFRS 9,        loan loss impairment in line with IFRS 9 included a 
the Bank identifies, and measures loss allowances     review of the Bank’s business Model to test the 
based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model on the   design and operating effectiveness of the key 
Islamic Financing Assets and Investment Assets         controls over the completeness and accuracy of 
which are not measured at Fair Value Through            key inputs   and   assumptions   into   the   IFRS    
Profit or Loss (FVTPL)                                                       9 impairment models.

In estimating the expected credit losses (ECLs) on              With the assistance of our IFRS (Credit) Specialist(s), 
Islamic Financing Assets, management makes use             we:
of significant assumptions and judgement in
determining the impairment loss.                  

       
Some of the key assumptions used are :
- Assessment of significant increase   in
  credit risk.

- Calculation of lifetime probabilities of
  default (PD) as well as lifetime expected 
  credit loss (ECL)

- Loss given default (LGD)

- Forward looking information macro-econmic
  factors (e.g unemployement rates, inflation 
  rate e.t.c)

- Because of the significance of these estimates
  and judgement, the audit of loan impairment
  is considered a key audit matter

- Estimates of future cash flows, valuation
  of collaterals

1. Obtained a detailed understanding of the default
definition(s) used in the ECL calculation. 

2. Tested the underlying calibration of data behind
the determination of the probability of default by 
agreeing same to underlying supporting 
documentation.

3. Tested the disclosures to ensure that the 
required disclosurea under IFRS 9 have been
appropriately disclosed.

4. Challenged the criteria used to allocate asset 
to stage 1, 2 and 3 in accordance with IFRS 9;

5. Tested assets in stage 1, 2 and 3 to verify that 
they were allocated to the appropriate stage;

6. Tested the data used in the ECL Calculation
(including the macro economic factors) by
reconciling to source systems;

               

Key Audit Matter          How the matter was addressed in the audit 

Based on our review, we found that the Bank’s 
impairment methodology, including the model, 
assumptions and key inputs used by management 
to estimate the amount of loan impairment losses
were comparable with historical performance, and
prevailing economic situations and that the 
estimated Islamic Financing Asset impairment 
determined was appropriate in the circumstances.
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Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report 
as required by Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, Corporate Governance Report, the Statement of 
Director’s Responsibilities, Corporate information, Bank’s Secretary Report, Financial Highlight, Board 
Evaluation Report, the Audit committee’s report, Advisory Council of Experts Report, Chief Executive Officer’s 
Statement and the Chairman’s Statement which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and the 
Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The other information does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Accounting and Auditing 
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI), the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, Banks 
and Other Financial Institutions Act and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011 and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the bank’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the bank or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•   Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
6
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audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•    Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the bank’s internal control.

•     Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

•    Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

•     Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Fifth Schedule of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, 
we expressly state that:

I. We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge 
 and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
II. The Bank has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those          
             books.
III. The Bank’s financial position and its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
             income are in agreement with the books of account and returns.
IV. In accordance with Circular BSD/1/2004 issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria, details of 
 insider- related transactions are as disclosed in note 22.
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The opinion expressed in these financial statements is to enable the bank to comply with the requirement 
for the submission of its financial statements to the Central Bank of Nigeria in accordance with Section 
26 of Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act, 2020. Consequently, these financial statements should 
not be distributed or made available to any third party in whole or in part pending final approval by the 
Central Bank of Nigeria and subsequent auditors’ opinion thereon.

For: Deloitte & Touche 
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria 30 March 2022
Engagement Partner: Michael Osinloye,
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000819
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Training
LOTUS

Training
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION   
                      31-Dec-2021
ASSETS         Notes            N'000
Cash and Balances with Central Bank of Nigeria    3  2,005,192
Due from Banks and Financial Institutions     4  4,175,477
Investment in sukuk measured at amortised cost    5  12,813,931
Interbank Mudaraba Investment      6  1,649,010
Murabaha (Cost plus financing) Receivables    7  780,405
Ijara (Lease Based Financing)       8  559,005
Inventory Financing        9  3,054,489
Other Assets         12  1,600,176
Property & Equipment       10  1,902,605
Intangible Assets        11  1,644,537
Deferred Tax         16b  581,936

Total Assets           30,766,764

LIABILITIES   
Customer Deposits        13  5,992,945
Auto Murabaha liabilities       14a  820,145
Other Liabilities        14b  11,736,854
Taxation         15  -

Total Liabilities          18,549,944

EQUITY OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS   
Mudaraba Investment Accounts      16a  504,145
Mudaraba Term Deposit Accounts      16b  8,795,641

Total Equity of Investment Accountholders       9,299,786

OWNERS' EQUITY   
Share capital         17  4,484,000
Share premium        18  374,468
Retained earnings        19  (1,974,603)
Risk Regulatory Reserves       20  23,765
Other Reserves        21  9,404
Total Owners' Equity          2,917,034
   
Total Liabilities, Equity of Investment Accountholders & Owners' Equity   30,766,764
   
Contingent Asset & Liabilities        2,012,276

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23rd March, 2022 and signed 
on its behalf by. The accompanying Notes on pages 72 to 109 are an integral part of these 
financial statements.

Tunde Lawal             Kafilat Araoye       Hajara Adeola
FRC/2022/01/00000023870           FRC/2020/003/00000022115     FRC/2013/IODN/00000002955
Acting Chief Financial Officer         Managing Director      Chairperson/Director

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
            31-Dec-2021
INCOME         Notes  N'000
Income from financing activities      23  39,651
Profit from sukuk investments      24  533,141
Profit from interbank Mudaraba      24  81,532
Profit from inventory financing      24  127,360
Gross Income from Islamic financing & Investment transactions    781,684
Return on unrestricted investment accounts holders   25  (278,762)
Bank's share as a mudarib and equity participation in the pool    502,922
Impairment charges        31  (13,681)
Net spread           489,241

Sukuk Trading income       24  188,800
Net Fee and commission       26  14,245
Total income           692,287

EXPENSES  
Staff costs         28  703,269
Depreciations & Amortisation      29  416,747
Administrative expenses       30  764,037
Total expenses          1,884,053

Net Operating Loss          (1,191,766)
Taxation         15  581,936
Loss for the Year after Tax         (609,830)

Other comprehensive income  
Foreign currency translation difference     27  9,404
Total comprehensive Loss for the Year       (600,426)

Basic Loss Per Share (Kobo)       37  (0.27)

The accompanying Notes on pages 61 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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At 06 July 2021      4,280,000 578,468       (1,341,008) -        -         3,517,460

Share capital adjustment      204,000 (204,000)  -  -                     -

Prudential adjustment           -        -          (23,765)        23,765         -  -
Foreign currency translation            -                    -  -  -     9,404         9,404
difference

Loss for the period           -        -          (609,830) -         -          (609,830)

At 31 December 2021      4,484,000 374,468        (1,974,603)     23,765      9,404        2,917,034

The accompanying Notes on pages 61 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Other 
Reserves
N'000

Total
N'000

Share
Capital
N'000

Share
Premium
N'000

Retained
Earnings
N'000

Risk Regulatory 
Reserve
N'000 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

The Negative Retained Earnings of N1.97Billion comprises of pre-operations expenses of N1.34Billion, 
current year loss of N609.83Billion and prudential adjustment of N23.77Million which is the difference 
between the IFRS 9 impairment and prudential provision. The Bank has over N7.4 Billion in deposit for 
shares as at 31st December 2021 awaiting final documentation to be classified as equity.
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS 
            31-Dec-2021
OPERATING ACTIVITIES         N'000
Net Loss Before Tax          (600,426)
Adjustments for non cash items: 
Depreciation           298,723
Amortization of Intangible Assets        118,024
Foreign currency translation difference       (9,404)
Impairment provision          13,681
Income tax            581,936  
Operating loss before changes in operating assets and liabilities    402,534

Working capital adjustments: 
Investment in sukuk measured at amortised cost      (12,388,088)
Interbank Mudaraba Investment        (1,600,000)
Murabaha (Cost plus financing) Receivables      (944,170)
Ijara (Lease Based Financing)         (568,922)
Inventory Financing          (3,054,489)
Customer Deposits          5,992,945
Other assets           (1,600,176)
Other liabilities          3,946,745
Net cash used in operating activities        (9,813,620)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment       (1,661,405)
Purchase of intangible assets         (238,364)
Net cash used in investing activities        (1,899,770)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Deposit for Shares          7,437,718
Customers' investment accounts        9,299,786
Net cash provided by financing activities       16,737,504

Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents       5,024,115
Cash and cash equivalents at 06 July       1,156,554
Cash And Cash Equivalents At 31 December      6,180,669

The accompanying Notes on pages 61 to 96 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
Audited Financial Statements and Reports For the Six Month period Ended 31 December 2021
 
1.  Reporting Entity
LOTUS Bank Limited was incorporated as a private limited liability company on 8th July 2020 and 
was issued a regional license by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) on 25th May 2021 to operate as a 
regional non-interest bank. The Bank commenced operation on 7th July 2021. The Bank is a Non- 
Interest Nigerian Bank deeply rooted in ethical banking, committed to ethical investing and ethical 
prosperity. We are committed to deepening financial inclusion and broadening the array of non- 
interest products available to the banked, unbanked, and under-banked population.

The Bank's registered office address is Plot 30A Adetokunbo Ademola Street, Victoria Island, Lagos.

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 
23rd March 2022. The Directors have the power to amend and issue the financial statements.

2. Basis of Preparation
a  Statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 
For matters on which no IFRS standard is applicable or IFRS conflicts with Shari'ah rules and principles, 
the Bank applied the relevant Financial Accounting Standard as issued by the Accounting & Auditing 
Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI) and Shari'ah rulings as determined by the 
Shari'ah Advisory Committee of the Bank.

b.  Functional and Presentation Currency
The Bank presented its financial statements in its functional currency, the Nigeria naira. All financial 
information presented has been rounded to the nearest thousands of naira (N'000) except where 
otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of Measurement
The Bank's financial statements are to be prepared under the historical cost convention, and may be 
modified by their valuation of certain investment securities, property, plant and equipment. Financial 
statements are to be prepared mainly in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). For matters that are peculiar
to Islamic Banking and Finance, the Bank shall rely on the Statement of Financial Accounting (“SFA”) 
and Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for 
Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”), Standards issued by the Islamic Financial Services Board 
(“IFSB”) and Circulars issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria (“CBN”) shall also be of guidance, 
except for the following

. Financial assets measured at amortised cost.

. Financial assets measure at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL).

. Financial assets measure at Fair Value though Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).

. Equity investments measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL).

Use of Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income, 
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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The estimates and core assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing concern basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that year, 
or in the year of the revision and future years, if the revision affects both current and future years.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainties and critical judgments in applying 
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial 
statements are described as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment
The management’s estimate is used in determining the depreciation rates and useful lives of these 
assets at the end of the period. Further details of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 10.

Impairment on Financial Assets
The measurement of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for financial assets measured at amortised 
cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about 
future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the 
resulting losses).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for 
measuring ECL, such as:

i Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk.
ii Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL
iii Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type 
 of product/market and associated ECL; and
iv Establish groups of financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the Bank are disclosed in note 34.

Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused 
tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses 
can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets 
that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with 
future tax planning strategies. Details of the Bank's recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
as disclosed in note 15.

2.2 New and Revised Standards and Interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with the relevant existing accounting standards predating 
the existence of the Bank. Adoption of the standard did not result in changes in the amounts previously 
recognised in the Statement of Affairs. However, the standard affected disclosures of the Bank.
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Standards and interpretations effective during the reporting period

i  Amendment to IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements) and IAS 8 (Accounting Policies,
 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors)

 In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and
 IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of
 ‘material’ across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definition. These amendments 
 are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early application 
 permitted.

 The new definition states that, ’Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could 
 reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general- purpose financial
 statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information 
 about a specific reporting entity.

 A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions 
 made by the primary users.

 The Bank has incorporated this definition in preparing sits financial statements.

ii Amendment to IFRS 3 (Business Combinations)
 IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) outlines the accounting when an acquirer obtains control of a 
 business (e.g., an acquisition or merger). Such business combinations are accounted for using the 
 'acquisition method', which generally requires assets acquired and liabilities assumed to be 
 measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.

 The amendments are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or 
 after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020, 
 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that period. Earlier application 
 is permitted.

The amendment relates to the definition of a “business” and they:

• Clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at 
 a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability 
 to create outputs.

• Narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing on goods and services provided 
 to customers and by removing the reference to an ability to reduce costs.

• Add guidance and illustrative examples to help entities assess whether a substantive process 
 has been acquired.

• Remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing 
 inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs.

• Add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired 
 set of activities and assets is not a business. This amendment does not have an impact on the 
 Bank's financial statements.
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iii Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases relating to COVID-19 related rent concessions.
 As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to lessees. Such 
 concessions might take a variety of forms, including payment holidays and deferral of lease
 payments. In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to IFRS 16 Leases which provides 
 lessees with an option to treat qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they would if
 they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the 
 concessions as variable lease payments in the period in which they are granted.

The Bank had no such Covid -19 related rent concessions, there is no impact on the Bank's 
financial statements.

2.3 Standards and interpretations issued/amended but not yet effective
The following standards have been issued or amended by the IASB but are yet to become effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

i Amendments to IAS 1
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or 
noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is
unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (e.g., the receipt of 
a waver or a breach of covenant). The amendments also clarify what IAS 1 means when it refers to 
the 'settlement' of a liability

The amendments could affect the classification of liabilities, particularly for entities that previously 
considered management's intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can be 
converted into equity.

They must be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements in IAS 8 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The impact of this amendment on the Bank's financial statements is currently under evaluation.

ii IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts covering the recognition and 
measurement and presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and replaces IFRS 4 - Insurance 
Contracts. The standard applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e. life, non-life, direct insurance 
and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees 
and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. The standard general model is
supplemented by the variable fee approach and the premium allocation approach.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with 
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted provided that the entity also applies IFRS 9 
and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17.

This standard does not impact the Bank in anyway as the Bank do not engage in insurance business

Standard Content Effec�ve date 
IAS 1 Presenta�on of Financial Statements rela�ng to 

classifica�on of Liabili�es as Current or Non-Current 
1 January, 2023 

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January, 2023 
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2.4 Accounting policies
Transactions in foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, which is the reporting currency in line with 
IAS 21 (Effects of foreign exchange) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the 
rate of exchange ruling on the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted into Naira at the rate 
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the statement of income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
into Naira using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial recognition. Non- monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into Naira using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value is determined. Exchange gains and losses on non-monetary items classified 
as “fair value through statement of income” are taken to the income statement and for items classified 
at “fair value through equity” such differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities 
of the foreign operations and translated at closing rate.

b
i) Cash in hand
ii) Balance held with Central Bank of Nigeria
iii) Balance with banks in Nigeria and outside Nigeria
iv) Demand deposit denominated in Naira and other foreign currencies 

 Cash and cash equivalent are short term, highly liquid instruments which are:
i) readily convertible into cash, whether in local and foreign currencies; and
ii) so near to their maturity dates as to present insignificant risk of changes in value as a result of 
 changes in profits rates.

c Financial instrument

i Recognition and initial measurement
 All the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Bank are initially recognised on the trade 
 date for regular way contracts, i.e., the date that the Bank becomes a party to the contractual 
 provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair 
 value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, direct and incremental 
 transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of 
 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in income 
 statement at initial recognition.

ii Classification and measurement
 Financial asset or liability are measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at 
 fair value through profit or loss, direct and incremental transaction costs that are directly 
 attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of financial assets and liabilities 
 carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in income statement at initial recognition.
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Financial assets are classified into one of the following measurement categories:

· those to be measured at amortised cost.
· those to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
· those to be measured at fair value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the Bank’s business model (i.e. business model test) for managing 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets cash flows (i.e. solely payments of 
principal and return – SPPI test).

Debt instruments 

Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at FVTPL

i The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
 cash flows; and
ii The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
 are solely payments of principal and return on the principal amount outstanding.

The gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part 
of a hedging relationship is recognised in income statement when the asset is derecognised or impaired. 
Returns from these financial assets is determined using the effective rate of return (ERR) method and 
reported in income statement as ‘income’.

The amortised cost of a financial instrument is defined as the amount at which it was measured at 
initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
 'effective rate of return method' of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, 
and minus any loss allowance. The effective rate of return method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial instrument (or group of instruments) and of allocating the income or 
expense over the relevant period. The effective rate of return (ERR) is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the instrument or, when appropriate, 
a shorter period, to the instrument's net carrying amount.

Business model assessment
The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a 
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided 
to management. The information considered includes:

i The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. 
 In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual return revenue, 
 maintaining a particular return rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the 
 duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale
 of the assets;
ii How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to management;
iii The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within 
 that business model) and how those risks are managed;
iv How managers of the business are compensated e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair 
 value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
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v The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its 
 expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered 
 in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing 
 the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.
 
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' 
or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is 
different from the Bank's original expectations, the Bank does not change the classification of the 
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing 
newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

i Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and return.

ii The Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition 
and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or 
amortization of the premium/discount).‘Return’ includes consideration for the time value of money and 
for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time 
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as 
profit margin.

The most significant elements of return within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration 
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Bank applies judgement 
and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and 
the period for which the return rate is set.

Financial liabilities
The Bank’s holding in financial liabilities is in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and 
financial liabilities at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in income statement.

i Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading. 
 A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the 
 purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified
 financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent 
 actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Financial liabilities held for trading also include 
 obligations to deliver financial assets borrowed by the Bank.

 Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as held for 
 trading are included in the income statement and are reported as ‘Net gains/(losses) on financial 
 instruments classified as held for trading’. Return expenses on financial liabilities held for trading 
 are included in ‘Net income’
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ii Financial liabilities at amortised cost
 Financial liabilities that are not classified at fair value through profit or loss fall into this category 
 and are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are deposits
 from banks or customers, debt securities in issue for which the fair value option is not applied, 
 convertible bonds and subordinated debts.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities 

i  Financial assets
 When the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of 
 the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then 
 the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. 
 In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised 
 at fair value. Any difference between the amortised cost and the present value of the estimated 
 future cash flows of the modified asset or consideration received on derecognition is recorded 
 as a separate line item in income statements as ‘gains and losses arising from the derecognition 
 of financial assets measured at amortised cost’.

 If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, 
 then the modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Bank 
 recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated 
 or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset’s original effective rate 
 of return (or credit-adjusted effective rate of return for purchased or originated credit-impaired
 financial assets). The amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount is recognised as a 
 modification gain or loss in income statement as part of impairment charge for the year.

ii      Financial liabilities
 The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the 
 modified liability are substantially different. This occurs when the discounted present value of the 
 cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted 
 using the original effective rate of return, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted 
 present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. In this case, a new 
 financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between
 the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with 
 modified terms is recognised in income statement. If an exchange of debt instruments or 
 modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are 
 recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is 
 not accounted for as an extinguishment (i.e., the modified liability is not substantially different), 
 any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the 
 remaining term of the modified liability.

Additionally, the CBN Guidance note on IFRS 9 implementation advises banks to consider quantitative, 
qualitative and ‘backstop’ indicators in assessing significant increase in credit risk. Four different indicators 
are implemented in this model, and they are based on:

i. Days past due
ii. Prudential classification
iii. Forbearance (Restructured)
iv. Credit rating migration
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 While IFRS 9 allows the assessment of significant increase in credit risk to be carried out
 individually or collectively for financial assets with homogeneous risk characteristics, this 
 model adopts an individual assessment method to enable a granular view of the loss allowance 
 across the portfolio. Each indicator is explained in detail below.

a Days Past Due (DPD): This classification is based on the number of days from a contractual 
 repayment date after which the obligor has not paid the contractual repayment amount. In 
 deriving this classification, the following thresholds were applied:

 Stage Classification Days Past Due
 Stage 1   Less than 30 days
 Stage 2  Between 30 – 90 days
 Stage 3  Above 90 days

There are instances where expired investments are classified as performing. The model has been adjusted 
to map to stage 3, all investments that expired 90days before the reporting date. Going forward, the Bank 
shall put in place adequate system to accurately compute days past due of investments.

b Prudential Classification: In staging its financial assets, the Bank also considers CBN prudential 
 classification as shown below:

 Stage Classification Prudential Classification
 Stage 1   PERFORMING
 Stage 2  WATCHLIST
 Stage 3  SUBSTANDARD, DOUBTFUL, LOST

c Forbearance Flag: The stage classification is also defined based on whether or not a facility has 
 been restructured due to forbearance at any point since initial recognition. In deriving this 
 classification, the following was applied:

 Stage Classification Forbearance Flag
 Stage 1   No Forbearance
 Stage 2  No Forbearance

d Credit Rating: This classification indicates the obligor’s credit rating, and it takes into consideration 
 the initial credit rating and the credit rating as at the reporting date.

 Stage Classification Credit Rating Migration
 Stage 1   Rating downgrade of not more than 2 notches since initial recognition 
 Stage 2  Rating downgrade of not more than 2 notches since initial recognition
 Stage 3  Default

Model Classification: The model classification, is the resultant stage classification based on the four 
indicators outlined above (a, b, c and d). The maximum stage classification value is determined to be 
the model classification of each obligor.
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Classification override: There are specific instances where the Bank may possess alternate information 
that defines an exposure’s stage classification, despite the resultant model classification. For such 
instances, an option has been provided in the model to provide a stage classification based on the 
Bank’s expert judgement that will be assigned to the exposure irrespective of the classification based 
on the model’s indicators.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset, and the net amount reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right and under Shari'ah framework 
to set off the recognized amounts and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets
The Bank recognizes allowance for expected credit losses for all financing and other debt financial assets 
not held at FVPL, together with financing commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section 
all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime 
expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, 
in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 years’ expected credit loss (12mECL).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible within the 12 years after the reporting date. Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are 
calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying 
portfolio of financial instruments.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The 
Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether 
a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the 
change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its financing facilities into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and 
POCI, as described below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result 
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12years after the reporting 
date. The Bank calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in
the 12 years following the reporting date. These expected 12-year default probabilities are applied to 
a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original
EIR. This calculation is made for each of the four scenarios, as explained above.

Stage 2: When a financing has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank 
records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, including 
the use of multiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. 
The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.
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Stage 3: For financing considered credit-impaired, the Bank recognises the lifetime expected credit 
losses for these financing. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.
POCI: POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. The Bank only 
recognises the cumulative changes in lifetime ECLs since initial recognition, based on a probability-
weighting of the four scenarios, discounted by the credit-adjusted EIR.

Financing commitments and letters of credit: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn financing in 
cash flows if the financing is drawn down, based on a probability-weighting of the four scenarios 
commitments, the Bank estimates the expected portion of the financing commitment that will be 
drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected 
shortfalls. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR 
on the financing.

The calculation of ECLs
The Bank calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash 
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the expected profit rate. A cash shortfall is the difference 
between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows 
that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
a PD: The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time 
 horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period if the facility 
 has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

b EAD: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking 
 into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments
 of principal and return, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected draw downs 
 on committed facilities, and accrued return from missed payments

c LGD: The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default 
 occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due 
 and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. 
 It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

 When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside and   
 downside). Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs.

 When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how defaulted financing  
 are expected to be recovered, including the probability that the financing will cure and the value  
 of collateral or the amount that might be received for selling the asset.

 Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification   
 losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying   
 value.

 Forward looking information
 The Bank's expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in  
 credit risk considers information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable  
 and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and   
 application of forward-looking information requires significant judgement.
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 In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward-looking information as economic  
 inputs, such as:

 • GDP growth
 • Unemployment rates
 • Exchange rate
 • House price indices
 • Inflation
 • Crude Oil prices

 To evaluate a range of possible outcomes, the bank formulates three scenarios: a base case, an  
 upward and a downward scenario

 The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the  
 market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays  
 are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

 Definition of default and credit impaired financial assets
 The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

 • it is established that due to financial or non-financial reasons the borrower is unlikely to  
  pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full without recourse by the Bank to actions such as  
  realising security (if any is held);
 • the borrower is past due 90 days or more on any material credit obligation to the Bank.
 
 In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators that are;

 i qualitative - e.g., material breaches of covenant;
 ii quantitative - e.g., overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same   
  customer /customer group to the banks; and
 iii based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources
 iv Disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties 
 v Others include death, insolvency, breach of covenants, etc.

 Inputs into the assessment of whether a financing exposure is in default and their significance may 
 vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

 Renegotiated financing facilities
 Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure financing facilities rather than to take possession of  
 collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new   
 conditions. Management continually reviews renegotiated facilities to ensure that all future   
 payments are highly expected to occur.

 When the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is 
 replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the finance customer, then an assessment  
 is made of whether the financial asset should be derecognized and ECL are measured as follows:



Audited Financial Statements and Reports For the Six-Month period Ended 31 December 2021

LOTUS BANK LIMITED

85

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 • If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the exiting asset, then the 
  expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the 
  cash shortfalls from the existing asset.
 • If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the   
  expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing finan 
  cial asset at the time of its derecognition.

 This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset. The cash 
 shortfalls are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the reporting date using the
 original effective profit rate of the existing financial asset.

 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

 Financing allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows;

 • Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying 
  amount of the assets;
 • Financing commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;
 • Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the 
  Bank cannot identify the ECL on the financing commitment component separately from  
  those on the drawn component: the Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both   
  components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying  
  amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount 
   of the drawn component is presented as a provision; and
 • Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of 
  financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However,  
  the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve

 Collateral valuation
 To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible. The 
 collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, 
 receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets, and credit enhancements such as netting   
 agreements. 
 The Bank’s accounting policy for collateral assigned to it through its lending arrangements under  
 IFRS 9 is the same is it was under IAS 39. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the  
 Bank’s statement of financial position.

 However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a  
 minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly basis. However, some collateral, for example,  
 cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued daily.

 To the extent possible, the Bank uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as   
 collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued  
 using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by  
 third parties such as mortgage brokers or based on housing price indices.
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 Collateral repossessed
 The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal   
 operations or shall be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred  
 to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the  
 original secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better optionare transferred to  
 assets held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for   
 non-financial assets at the repossession date in line with the Bank’s policy.

 Write-off
 After a full evaluation of a non-performing exposure, in the event that either one or all of the   
 following conditions apply, such exposure is recommended for write-off (either partially or in full):

 • continued contact with the customer is impossible
 • recovery cost is expected to be higher than the outstanding debt
 • amount obtained from realisation of credit collateral security leaves a balance of the debt
 • It is reasonably determined that no further recovery on the facility is possible

 All credit facility write-offs require endorsement by the Management Credit and Board Credit   
 Committee, as defined by the Bank. Credit write-off approval is documented in writing and properly  
 initiated by the Management Credit and Board Credit Committee.

 A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The write-off amount is used to reduce the carrying  
 amount of the financial asset. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to  
 enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank's procedures for recovery of amount due.  
 Whenever amounts are recovered on previously written-off credit exposures, such amount recovered  
 is recognised as income on a cash basis only.

d Property plant and equipment
 The bank recognizes items of property, plant, and equipment at the time the cost is incurred. They  
 are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset,  
 as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will  
 flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and   
 maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are  
 incurred.
 Construction cost in respect of offices is carried at cost as work in progress. On completion of   
 construction, the related amounts are transferred to the appropriate category of fixed assets.   
 Payments in advance for items of fixed assets are included as Prepayments in Other Assets and upon  
 delivery are reclassified as additions in the appropriate category of property and equipment.

 Depreciation
 Depreciation is to be provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of asset over their   
 estimated useful live. The annual rate which should be applied consistently over time are as follows:

 Motor vehicle   (4 years) 
 Furniture and fittings  (5 years)
 Equipment   (5 years) 
 Computer Hardware  (3 years) 
 Computer software  (10 years)
 Freehold Buildings  (50 years)
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 Right of use assets Lower of lease term or the useful life for the specified class of item

 Leasehold improvement over the expected life of the lease
 Property, plant, and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits  
 are expected from it use. Gain and losses are recognised in the income statement.

 Depreciation is charged when the assets are available for use irrespective of whether they are put  
 to use. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or  
 changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset's  
 carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying   
 amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of  
 the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

 Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These  
 are included in the statement of income for the year.

e Intangible assets
 Software licenses acquired by the Bank are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and 
 accumulated impairment loss (if any). Expenditure incurred on internally developed software is 
 recognized as an asset when the Bank is able to complete the software development and use it 
 in such a manner that it will be able to generate economic benefit to the Bank, and that the cost 
 to complete the development can reliably be measured by the Bank.

 Internally developed software cost that is capitalized includes cost directly attributable to 
 developing the software and is amortized over the useful economic life of the software.

 Amortization is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
 useful life of the software.

f Inventory
 Inventory of stationery and consumables held by the Bank are to be stated at the lower of cost 
 and net realizable value in line with IAS 2. When inventories become old or obsolete, an estimate 
 is to be made of their net realizable value. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is 
 to be performed on an individual basis. For amounts that are not individually significant, collective 
 assessment shall be made and allowance applied according to the inventory type and degree of 
 ageing or obsolescence based on historical selling prices.

g Islamic financing and investing contracts
 The Bank engages in Shari'ah compliant Islamic banking activities through various Islamic 
 instruments such as Ijarah, Murabaha, Musharaka, Istisna'a and Wakala.

 i Ijarah
  The Bank shall comply fully with the requirements of Shari'ah in recognition and measure 
  ment of Ijarah financing. The periodic lease rentals receivable is treated as rental income  
  during the period they occur and charge thereon is included in operating expenses while  
  initial direct cost incurred are written off to the income statement in the period they are  
  incurred.
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 ii Murabaha receivables from banks
  These are interbank commodity murabaha transactions. The Bank arranges a murabaha trans 
  action by buying a commodity (which represents the object of the murabaha) and then resells  
  this commodity to the beneficiary murabeh (after computing a profit margin). The sale price  
  (cost plus the profit margin) is paid either lump sum at maturity or in installments by the  
  murabeh over the agreed period. Murabaha receivables from banks are stated net of deferred  
  profits and provision for impairment, if any.

 iii Murabaha receivables from customers
  Customer Murabaha receivables consist of deferred sales transaction agreements and are  
  stated net of deferred profits, any amounts written off and provision for impairment, if any.  
  Promise made in the murabaha to the purchase orderer is obligatory upon the customer and  
  the bank can claim damages to the exact amount of loss suffered

 iv Musharaka
  Musharaka contracts represents a partnership between the Bank and a customer whereby  
  each party contributes to the capital in equal or varying proportions to establish a new project  
  or share in an existing one, and whereby each of the parties becomes an owner of the capital  
  on a permanent or declining basis and shall have a share of profits or losses. These are stated  
  at the fair value of consideration given less any amounts written off and provision for   
  impairment, if any.

 v Istisna'a
  Other financial assets include Istisn’a (Long term project finance instrument)

 vi Wakala
  A contract between a Bank and a customer whereby one party (the principal: the Muwakkil)  
  appoints the other party (the agent: Wakil) to invest certain funds according to the terms and  
  conditions of the Wakalah for a fixed fee in addition to any profit exceeding the expected  
  profit as an incentives for the Wakil for the good performance. Any losses as result of the  
  misconduct or negligence or violation of the the terms and conditions of the Wakalah are  
  borne by the Wakil for otherwise, they are by the principal.

 vii Sukuk
  Certificates which are equal in value and represent common shares in the ownership of a  
  specific physical asset (leased or to be leased either existing or to be constructed in future), or  
  in the ownership of cash receivables of selling an existing-owned asset, or in the ownership of  
  goods receivables, or in the ownership of the assets of Mudaraba or Partnership companies. I 
  n all these cases, the Sukuk holders shall be the owners of their common shares in the leased  
  assets, or in the cash receivables, or the goods receivable, or in the assets of the Partnership  
  or the Mudaraba. These comprise asset backed, Shari'ah compliant trust certificates.

 viii Qard hassan
  These are nonprofit bearing financing whereby the customer borrows funds for a period of  
  time with an understanding that the same amount shall be repaid at the end of the agreed  
  period.

h Income recognition
 The Bank recognised income on Shari'ah compliant Islamic banking activities through various Islamic
 instruments such as Ijarah, Murabaha, Musharaka, Istisna'a and Wakala.
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 i Ijarah
  Ijarah income is recognized on a time-apportioned basis, over the lease term. Accrual of     
  income  is suspended when the bank believes that the recovery of these amounts may be  
  doubtful.

 ii Murabaha
  Where the income is quantifiable and contractually determined at the commencement of  
  the contract, income is recognized on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the   
  contract based on the principal amounts outstanding. Accrual of income is suspended   
  when the bank believes that the recovery of these amounts may be doubtful.

 iii Musharaka
  Income on Musharaka Contracts is recognized when the right to receive payment is   
  established or on distribution by the Musharek.

 iv Wakala
  Estimated income from Wakala is recognised on an accrual basis over the period, adjusted  
  by actual income when received. Losses are accounted for on the date of declaration by the  
  agent.

 v Sukuk
  Income is accounted for on a time apportioned basis over the terms of the Sukuk.

 vi Fees and commission income
  Unless included in the effective rate of return calculation, fees and commissions are   
  recognised on an accruals basis (i.e., when earned) as the service is provided. Fees and   
  commissions not integral to effective rate of return arising from negotiating, or    
  participating in the negotiation of, a transaction from a third party, such as the acquisition  
  of facilities, shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, are recognised  
  on completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and other management advisory and  
  service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts

 vii Dividend
  Dividends from investments in equity securities are recognized when the right to receive  
  the payment is established. This is usually when the dividend has been declared.

 viii Non-credit related fee income
  This is recognized at the time the services have been performed and delivered or the   
  transaction has been completed.

 ix Sale of property under development
  Where property is under development and agreement has been reached to sell such   
  property when construction is complete, the bank considers whether the contract   
  comprises:

  • Contract to construct a property; or
  • Contract for the sale of completed property

  Where a contract is judged to be for the construction of a property, revenue is recognized  
  using the percentage of completion method, as construction progresses. The percentage of  
  work completed is measured based on the costs incurred up until the end of the reporting  
  period as a proportion of total costs expected to be incurred.
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  Where the contract is judged to be for the sale of a completed property, revenue is 
  recognized when the significant risks, rewards, and control of ownership of the    
  property are transferred to the buyer.  

 x Foreign income
  Commission on negotiation of various letters of credit and overdue Profit on delayed   
  foreign payments are accounted for on receipt. Other Profit and income earned on the  
  Bank's own funds held outside Nigeria are accounted for on receipt.

 xi Service income
  Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the services are rendered

 xii Revenue from sale of goods
  Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the significant risks, rewards and control  
  of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be   
  measured reliably

 xiii Bank's share as a mudarib
  The Bank's share as a mudarib for managing the equity of investment account holders is  
  accrued based on the terms and conditions of the related mudaraba agreements whereas,  
  for off balance sheet equity of investment accounts, mudarib share is recognized when   
  distributed.  

  Expense recognition

  a Profit on mudaraba payable (banks and non-banks)
   Profit on these is accrued on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the   
   contract based on the principal amounts outstanding.

  b Return on equity of investment accountholders
   Return on equity of investment account holders is based on the income generated  
   from jointly financed assets after deducting Mudarib share and is accrued based on  
   the terms and conditions of the underlying Mudaraba agreement. Investors' share of  
   income represents income generated from assets financed by investment account  
   holders net off allocated administrative expenses and provisions. The bank's share of  
   profit is deducted from the investors' share of income before distribution to   
   investors.

i Taxation

 a Current income taxation
  Income tax is the amount of income tax payable on the taxable profit for the period deter 
  mined in accordance with current statutory rate. Income tax payable on profits, based on  
  the applicable tax law, is recognized as an expense in the period in which the related profits  
  arise. All taxes related issues including deferred tax are treated in accordance with IAS 12  
  (Income taxes).

 b Deferred taxation 
  Provision for deferred taxation is made by the liability method and calculated at the current 
  rate of taxation on the temporary differences between the net book value of qualifying   
  fixed assets and their corresponding tax written down value in accordance with IAS 12   
  (Income taxes). The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property,  
  plant and equipment, provision for pensions and other post-retirement benefits, provision  
  for investment losses and tax losses carried forward. The rates enacted or substantively  
  enacted at the balance sheet date are used to determine deferreed income tax.
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j Investment

 i        Investment securities
  Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus, in case of investment securities  
  not at fair value through profit or loss, incremental direct transaction costs and subsequently  
  accounted for depending on their classification as amortised cost, fair value through profit or  
  loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

 ii Investments in subsidiaries
  Investments in subsidiaries are reported at cost less any impairment (if any).

  A subsidiary not consolidated but is classified as ‘held for sale’ if it is available for immediate  
  sale in its present condition and its sale is highly probable. A sale is ‘highly probable’ where:  
  there is evidence of management commitment; there is an active programme to locate a  
  buyer and complete the plan; the asset is actively marketed for sale at a reasonable price  
  compared to its fair value; the sale is expected to be completed within 12 years of the date of  
  classification; and actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that there  
  will be significant changes to the plan or that it will be withdrawn. 

k Employee benefits 

 Defined contribution plans:
 A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed contributions to a 
 separate entity. The rate of contribution by the Bank and its employee is 10% and 8% respectively 
 of basic salary, housing and transport allowance in line with the new Pension Reform Act, 2014. 
 The Bank has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions membership of the 
 scheme is automatic upon resumption of duty with the Bank. The Bank has no further payment 
 obligations once the contributions have been paid to Pension Fund Administrators (PFA).

 The Bank's liabilities in respect of the defined contribution are to be charged to statement of 
 profit or loss for the year in which they become payable. Payments are made to Pension Fund 
 Administrator (PFA) are financially independent of the bank.

l Provisions
 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive 
 obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
 will be required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is material, 
 provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows, at a pre-tax rate, that 
 reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
 specific to the liability.

m Financial guarantees and financing commitments
 Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse 
 the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 
 accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee liabilities are initially 
 recognised at their fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial 
 guarantee. After initial recognition, guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the 
 higher of:

 i The amount of the loss allowance, and

 ii The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income 
  recognised in accordance with the principles of IFRS 15.
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  Financial guarantees, principally consisting of letters of credit are included within other  
  liabilities. The Bank recognises a provision in accordance with IAS 37 if the contract was  
  onerous.

  Transactions that are not currently recognized as assets or liabilities in the balance sheet,  
  but which nonetheless give rise to credit risks, contingencies and commitments are   
  reported off balance sheet. Such transactions included letters of credit, bonds, guarantees,  
  acceptances, trade related contingencies such as documentary credits etc.

  Outstanding and unexpired commitments at year end in respect of these transactions are  
  to be shown by way of note to the financial statements.

n Borrowings

 i Murabaha and due to Banks
  This represents funds received from banks on the principles of murabaha contracts and are  
  stated at fair value of consideration received less amounts settled

 ii Murabaha and due to non-banks
  These are stated at fair value of consideration received less amounts settled. Profit paid on 
  borrowings is recognized in the statement of income for the year

o           Fiduciary activities
 The Bank acts as trustee in its capacity as a Mudarib when managing the equity of investment 
 account holders. Equity of investment account holders is invested in murabaha and due from 
 banks, sukuk and financing contracts with customers. Equity of investment account holders is 
 carried at fair value of consideration received less amounts settled. Expenses are allocated to 
 investment accounts in proportion of average equity of investment account holders to total 
 average assets of the Bank.

 Income is allocated proportionately between equity of investment account holders and owners' 
 equity on the basis of the average balances outstanding during the year and share of the funds 
 invested. Equity and assets of restricted investment account holders are carried off-balance 
 sheet as they are not assets and liabilities of the Bank.

p Segment reporting
 The Bank prepares its segment information based on geographical and business segments as 
 primary and secondary reporting segments, respectively in accordance with IFRS 8 (Operating 
 segments).

 A business segment is a Bank of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services 
 that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. 
 A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic 
 environment that are subject to risks and returns different from those of segments operating in 
 other economic environments.

 The Bank has appointed the Management committee charged with the responsibility of allocating 
 resources and assessing performance as the Chief Operating Decision Maker as required under 
 IFRS 8. The CODM is reviewed and advised by the Board for decisions on significant transactions 
 and or events.
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q Customer deposit
 The Bank is required to maintain specific records for all the classes of deposits.

 The average daily balances for a particular month of all the classes of deposits will be used in the
 computation of the profitability of the Bank.

 The average daily balances of each Investment Account holder depositor will also be the basis 
 for the distribution of profits to the depositor.
 All deposits accepted by Bank shall only be utilised in the provision of finances, investment in 
 securities, inter-bank placements and other business prescribed by CBN that complies with 
 Shari'ah. All division must ensure that all investments complying with the Shari'ah laws.

r Investment property
 An Investment Property is an investment in land or buildings held primarily for generating income 
 or capital appreciation and not occupied substantially for use in the operations of the Bank. A piece 
 of property is treated as an investment property if it is not occupied substantially for use in the 
 operations of the Bank, an occupation of more than 15% of the property is considered substantial.

 The initial Recognition is to be at its cost price while for subsequent measurement the Bank adapted 
 the fair value model which carry the investment properties in the balance sheet at their market value 
 and revalued periodically on a systematic basis at least once in every three years in accordance 
 with (IAS 40). Investment properties are not subject to periodic charge for depreciation.

 When there is a decline in value of an investment property, the carrying amount of the property 
 is written down to recognize the loss. Such a reduction is charged to the statement of income. 
 Reductions in carrying amount are reversed when there is an increase, following a revaluation 
 in accordance with the Bank’s policy, in the value of the investment property, or if the reasons 
 for the reduction no longer exist.

 An increase in carrying amount arising from the revaluation of investment property is credited to 
 owners' equity as revaluation surplus. To the extent that a decrease in carrying amount offsets a 
 previous increase, for the same property that has been credited to revaluation surplus and not 
 subsequently reversed or utilized, it is charged against that revaluation surplus rather than the
 statement of income.

 An increase on revaluation which is directly related to a previous decrease in carrying amount 
 for the same property that was charged to the income statement is credited to income statement 
 to the extent that it offsets the previously recorded decrease.

 Investment properties are disclosed separate from the property and equipment used for the 
 purposes of the business in line with IAS 40 (Investment Properties)

s Share capital and reserves 

 i  Share issue cost
  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the   
  acquisition of a business are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

 ii Dividend on ordinary shares
  Dividends on the Bank’s ordinary shares are recognised in equity when approved by the  
  Bank’s shareholders. Dividends for the period that are declared after the end of the reporting  
  period are dealt with in the subsequent events note.
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  The dividend shall be declared after all regulatory requirements fulfilled.

 iii Share premium
  Share premium is the excess paid by shareholders over the nominal value for their shares.

 iv Statutory reserve
  The banking regulations in Nigeria require the Bank to make an annual appropriation to a 
  statutory reserve. As stipulated by Section 16(1) of the Banks and Other Financial   
  Institutions Act of 1991 (amended), an appropriation of 30% of profit after tax is made if the  
  statutory reserve is less than the paid-up share capital and 15% of profit after tax if the   
  statutory reserve is greater than the paid-up share capital.

 iv AGSMIES reserve
  The AGSMIES reserve is maintained to comply with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN)   
  requirement that all licensed banks set aside 5% of their annual profit after tax for equity  
  investments in permissible activities.

 v Retained earnings
  Retained earnings comprise the undistributed profits from previous periods which have not  
  been reclassified to any specified reserves.

 vi Regulatory risk reserve
  The regulatory risk reserve represents the difference between the impairment on financing  
  and investments determined using the prudential guidelines issued by the various Central  
  Bank of Nigeria compared with the expected credit loss model used in determining the   
  impairment loss allowance under IFRSs.
  Where the financing loss impairment determined using the prudential guidelines is greater  
  than the financing loss impairment determined using the expected credit loss model under  
  IFRSs, the difference is transferred to regulatory risk reserve. When the prudential   
  provisions are less than IFRS provisions, the excess charges resulting is transferred from the  
  regulatory risk reserve to retained earnings to the extent of the non-distributable reserve 
   previously recognised. This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

t Earnings per share
 The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 
 by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted 
 average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss that is attributable to ordinary 
 shareholders and the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding for effects of all 
 dilutive potential ordinary shares.

u Investment risk reserve (IRR)
 This is the amount appropriated by the Bank out of income of investment account holders, 
 after allocating the Mudarib share, in order to cater against future losses for investment 
 account holders.
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v Profit Equalisation Reserve (PER)
 PER refers to the amount appropriated out of the total gross income to mitigate the undesirable 
 fluctuation of income and to maintain a certain level of returns to the depositors. his amount shall 
 be appropriated from Mudaraba income by the Bank before allocating its own share (Mudarib fee).
 PER is shared by both the depositors and the Bank and hence can be appropriated from and 
 written back to the total gross income in deriving the distributable income. PER is reflected 
 under the other liabilities on the statement of financial position.

w Leases
 The Bank assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
 contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
  for consideration. The Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, 
 except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities 
 to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

x Right-of-use assets
 The Bank recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date 
 the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 
 accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 
 liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease obligations recognized, 
 initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date 
 less any lease incentives received. Unless the Bank is reasonably certain to obtain ownership 
 of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated
 on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease term. Right-of-use 
 assets are subject to impairment.
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                31-Dec-2021
3. Cash And Balances with Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN)                    N'000
 
Cash on hand            275,752
Deposits with CBN                    1,729,440
At 31 December                     2,005,192  

Cash and Balance with Central Bank of Nigeria represent the operational cash balance and the 
balances with the lender of last resort.

                 31-Dec-2021
4.  Due From Banks and Financial Institutions          N'000

Balances with banks within Nigeria: 
United Bank for Africa                    1,982,161
Access Bank                       6
As at 31 December                     1,982,168  

Balances with banks outside of Nigeria: 
Bank of Beirut UK              17,207
United Bank of America                    2,071,872
ACCESS Bank UK           104,230
As at 31 December                     2,193,309  

The balances held with Banks within Nigeria represent the amount available for the day-to-day 
operations of the Bank in other Banks
                 31-Dec-2021
5.  Investment in sukuk measured at amortised cost                     N'000

At 06 July -
Purchased During the year                 10,829,853
Accrued rental            427,766
Sukuk premium                     1,558,234
Gross Sukuk Receivables                  12,815,854
Allowance for impairments             (1,923)
As at 31 December                       12,813,931  

The sukuk comprises of Principal, Accrued profit and the premium paid for the investment purchased 
on the secondary market.
                 31-Dec-2021
6.  Interbank Mudaraba Investments                        N'000

Interbank Mudaraba                   1,600,000
Interbank Mudaraba Receivables           49,010
At 31 December                      1,649,010  
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Interbank Mudaraba is one of the liquidity management instruments available to non-interest
banks. As at the reporting date, the Bank had N1.6billion mudaraba deposit with counterparties.

7.   Murabaha Receivables
 
At 6 July 
Corporate Murabaha                    930,083
Retail Murabaha           14,087
Gross Murabaha Receivables                     944,170
Allowance for impairment           (1,841)
Deferred profit                    (161,924)
At 31 December                      780,405

8.  Ijara Assets 

At 06 July 
Ijara Muntahia Bitamleek                   568,922
Gross Murabaha Receivables                   568,922
Allowance for impairment          (9,917)
At 31 December                    559,005

9.  Inventory Financing 

At 06 July 
Inventory Finance asset                3,054,489
Gross Murabaha Receivables                3,054,489
Allowance for impairment                  -
At 31 December                 3,054,489
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            31-Dec-2021
11.  Intangible Asset (Computer Software)                  N'000

Cost: 
At 06 July 2021                1,524,197
Additions                                                                                        238,364
At 31 December                  1,762,561

Amortisation: 
At 06 July 2021               –
Charge for the year                   118,024
At 31 December                   118,024

Net book Value at 31 December                         1,644,537  

12.  OTHER ASSETS 

Operating stocks                   46,344
Prepayments                   451,578
Prepaid Status car                  820,145
Branch development expenditure                232,297
Receivables                 10
NIBSS Receivables                   49,802
At 31 December                1,600,176

As a valued employer, the Bank caters for the transportation needs of its employees. The sum of 
N820million was used for the provision of status cars for employees of the bank.

13.  Due to Customers 

Analysis by type of account: 
Current account customer's deposit. 

13a.  Retails Customer's Deposits 

Local currency current account               494,910
Domiciliary current account                 158,610
                      653,520

Corporate Customer's Deposits 

Local currency current account             5,293,831
Domiciliary current account                   45,594
                 5,339,426

At 31 December              5,992,945  
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14a.   Auto Murabaha Liabilities 
Auto Murabaha liability                 820,145
At 31 December                   820,145  

For adequate cashflow management, the Bank acquired status vehicles from LOTUS Capital Ltd using 
the Murabaha model of non-interest financing. At the reporting date, the principal and accrued profit 
represent N820.1million as shown above.
  
            31-Dec-2021
                       N'000
14b.   Other Liabilities 

Accounts payable                   274,163
Tax liabilities                      29,271
Profit payable to Mudaraba savings accounts                 74,814
Deposit for Share                 7,437,718
FGN Sukuk IV Proceeds               1,895,160
LC Margin                2,021,439
Profit Equalisation Reserve                       2,550
Risk Investment Reserve          1,739
At 31 December               11,736,854  

Account payable comprises of deposit for share of N7.44billion, N1.90 Billion FGN sukuk proceed is 
the federal government sukuk collection balance as the reporting date while the LC margin accounted 
for N2,02Billion, these are cash backed for the LC margin. The profit equalisation reserve and 
investment risk reserve are risk mitigants for mitigating against equity risk and profit.

                                              31-Dec-2021
15a.   Taxation                                         N'000
i) Income Statement 
Income tax based on the loss for the year                          -
Education tax                         -   
                   -
Deferred tax (Note 15 b)                 581,936
Income Statement                   581,936  

ii)  Statement of Financial Position 

At 06 July                  -
Charge for the year                  -  
                               -
Less paid during the year                -
At 31 December                  -  

15b.   Deferred Taxation 
At 06 July                  -
Provision for the year                  581,936
                     581,936  
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16.  Equity of Investment Accountholders 

Mudaraba Investment Accounts         504,145
Mudaraba Term Deposit Accounts                  8,795,641
At 31 December                     9,299,786  

17,   Owners' Equity 

(A)  Share Capital                31-Dec-2021
(i)    Authorised               N'000
7,500,000,000 Ordinary Shares of N1 each                7,500,000
At 31 December                    7,500,000  

(ii)  Issued and Fully Paid 
4,484,000,000.00 ordinary shares of N1 each 
At 06 July                   4,280,000
Issued during the year                    204,000
Adjustments (share premium)                   -
At 31 December                   4,484,000  

Amounts collected in excess of the par value of the issued share capital during any new issue of shares,
net of issue expenses, are treated as share premium. This amount is not available for distribution but can
be utilised as stipulated by CAMA 2020.

18.  Share Premium 
 
At 06 July                      578,468
Adjustment arising during the year (Issued and fully paid)             (204,000)
At 31 December                      374,468  

Share Premium represents the excess of the paid-up share capital over the nominal value of the Bank’s
shares at the reporting date.

19.  Retained Earnings 
 
At 06 July                 (1,341,008)
Adjustments for Risk regulatory reserve                  (23,765)
Net Loss for the year                              (609,830)
At 31 December                 (1,974,603)

20.   Risk Regulatory Reserves

At 06 July                    -
Prudential Adjustment                      23,765 
At 31 December                       23,765

The prudential adjustment of N23.8million represents the difference between the IFRS 9 impairment 
and prudential provision.
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21.  Other Reserves 
  
At beginning of the year                   -
Foreign currency translation difference (Movements during the year)     9,404
At 31 December             9,404  

22.  Related Party Disclosure
In the ordinary course of its activities, the Bank has no exposures that are related to its Directors. 
The Bank however would follow strict process before granting such credits to its directors. The 
requirements for creating and managing this category of risk assets include the following amongst 
others:

(i) Related parties: Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the 
 other party or exercise influence over the other party in making financial and operational 
 decisions, or one other party controls both. The definition includes investment as well as key 
 management personnel.

(ii) Transaction with key management personnel: The Bank's key management personnel, and 
 persons connected with them, are also considered related parties. The definition of key 
 management includes the close members family of key personnel and any entity over which 
 key management exercise control. Close family members are those who may be expected to
 influence, or be influenced by that individual in their dealings with LOTUS Bank Limited.

               31-Dec-2021 
              N'000 

 
Lotus Capital Limited     Major Shareholder                 (820,145)                    Auto-Murabaha Liability
Lotus Capital Limited     Major Shareholder                1,000,000                        Interbank Mudaraba

               31-Dec-2021
             N'000
23.   Income from Financing Activities 
Income from Murabaha financing         18,285
Profit from Ijarah financing          21,366
Total profit from financing activities         39,651
  
24.   Income from Investment Activities 
Profit on Sukuk (Held to maturity)                   533,141
Profit on Sukuk (Held for Trading)                  188,800
Interbank Mudaraba Profit                     81,532

Amount
receivable/(payable) 

Relationship 
with the bank Related party Classification
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Profit from inventory finance          127,360
Total profit from Murabaha transactions                   930,833

25.  Return on Equity of Investment Account Holders 
              N'000
Profit paid to Unrestricted Mudaraba Account Holders / Fees of Mudarib               781,684
Profit from Financing Investments paid to Mudaraba Account Holders               278,762
Bank's fees as Mudarib.                    502,922

The Bank operates the Unrestricted type of Mudaraba Investment, in which the Mudarib (the Bank) is 
authorized by the providers of Funds (Rabbul Mal) to invest their funds in the manner which the Mudarib 
deems appropriate. Profits are shared as a common Percentage Rate rather than a fixed amount. 
The amount of N278 Million was paid by the Bank to the Mudaraba Account Holders within 2021 
Financial Year.
 
                 31-Dec-2021
26.  Fees and Commission Income                        N'000

Digital service income              6,220
FX related income                7,097
Transaction service income                  928
At 31 December                          14,245

27.  Other Comprehensive Income 

Foreign currency translation difference            9,404
At 31 December               9,404

28.   Staff Cost 

Salaries                       646,852
Pension                                      23,887
Other Staff cost                         32,530
At 31 December                                               703,269

29.  Depreciation/Amortisation 

Depreciation on property & Equipment (see note 12)      298,723
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (see note 14)        118,024
Total Depreciation & Amortization          416,747

30.  Administrative and General Expenses 

Advertising and publicity expenses         197,327
Occupancy expenses             16,350
Bank Charges              15,250
Telephone expenses               1,240
Other Human Resource Operating expenses         28,821
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 Training            98,242
 Contract Service Providers         40,434
 Advisory/Consultancy fee           19,841
 Travels expenses           29,737
 Printing & Stationeries           18,417
 Repairs and maintenance          15,305
 Audit expenses            7,000
 Regulatory contributions          9,000
 Security Guards          16,065
 Insurance           20,229
 Legal and Director Expense         30,728
 Information technology operating expenses       39,931
 Business & Information technology subscriptions      98,413
 Other Miscellaneous expenses         48,124
 Fuel expenses            13,581
 At 31 December                    764,037

31. Impairment Charges 
                31-Dec-2021
                           N'000
 Impairment provision            13,681
 At 31 December            13,681

                 2021
              N'000
32 Information Regarding Directors 
 
 Emoluments   
 Fees:            22,924
 Chairman             3,300
 Other directors (N4,000,000 each)          2,200
 Emolument as executives           13,126
 Highest paid director               3,300
 
 No. of Directors excluding the chairman with gross emoluments within the following ranges were:
              
                 2021  
 N     N         Number
 1,000,000  - 10,000,000                9
 10,000,001  - 15,000,000                 -
 15,000,001  - above                 2
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33 Information Regarding Employees 
 The number of employees excluding Directors in receipt of emoluments excluding allowances 
 in the following ranges were:
                 2021  
 N     N                Number
 Below   -  400,000             51
 400,001  -  500,000              5
 500,000  -  600,000            19
 600,000  -  700,000             3
 700,000  -  800,000             6
 800,000  -  900,000             3
 900,000  -  1,000,000             4
 1,000,000  -  5,000,000           34
 5,000,000  -  10,000,000             4
 Above   -  10,000,000             2
                  131
 
 Number of persons employed as at the end of the year were: 
                2021  
                     Number
 Managerial                   7
 Senior                  42
 Junior                   82  
                    131  
34 Events after the Reporting Period

 There were no events after the reporting date which could have had a material effect on the 
 financial statements as at 31 December 2021.

 35A Card Issuance and Usage in Nigeria as at 31 December 2021

 In line with Sec.11 of the CBN' Circular on The Guidance for issuance and usage of cards in 
 Nigeria, below is the Bank's information on its Card

 CARD TYPE        TRANSACTION    TRANSACTION
              VOLUMES         VOLUMES
                VOLUME             VALUE
 
 VERVE DEBIT CARD    35,070            302,472,404
 MASTERCARD CARD          -          - 
 Total       35,070             302,472,404 

35B In line with CBN circular Ref FPR/DIR/CIR/GEN/01/020, below are the customer complaints 
 data for the year:

(i) ATM complaints data- 31 December 2021 TRANSACTION   TRANSACTION 
             VOLUMES            VALUE
 Unresolved as at 06 July      -      -
 Number of complaints     31           2,178,500
 Number of complaints resolved    -26            2.155,900 
 Unresolved as at 31 December      5                 22,600 
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                31-Dec-2021
36. Share Shareholding          Holdings      Percentage
 Hajara Adeola        800,000,000        18%
 Sansadeen Awosanya       500,000,000         11%
 Fadeyibi Adeoye       500,000,000         11%
 Lotus Capital Limited       404,000,000         9%
 Lotus Nominees Limited      920,000,000         21%
 Adama Beverages       800,000,000         18%
 Profile International Limited      400,000,000         9%
 Abubakar Yakubu       160,000,000         4%
 At 31 December       4,484,000,000     100%

37. 

 Earnings Per Share  
 Basic and diluted Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit (loss) for the year by 
 the Weighted Average Number of shares during the year as follows:
                              31-Dec-2021
                N'000
 Net Loss for the year                   (1,191,766)
 Weighted Average Number of Shares                           4,484,000
 Basic and diluted Loss Per Share             (0.27)
 At 31 December               (0.27)
 
 There have been no transactions during the year which caused dilution of the earnings per share.

38. Capital Adequacy Ratio
 In line with the Central Bank of Nigeria’s guideline on Pillar 1 Capital, the Bank presents the  
 details of its regulatory capital resources as follows:
                 31-Dec-2021
               N'000
 Regulatory Capital 
 Share Capital                  4,484,000
 Share Premium                     374,468
 Retained Earnings                 -1,974,603
 Statutory Reserve           23,765
 Other Reserves            9,404
                     2,917,034
 Less: Deferred Tax Assets                    581,936
 Intangible Assets                  1,644,537
 Total Qualifying Capital                   690,560
  
 Risk Weighted Assets 
 Credit Risk                10,369,944
 Operational Risk                  1,449,056
 Market Risk                   6,993,817
 Total Risk Weighted Assets                18,812,817
 Risk Weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio                                                                                          3.67%
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The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) specified a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 15% for Banks 
with international authorization and Systemically Important Banks (SIBs) while other Banks have an 
applicable CAR of 10%. Although, the Bank’s CAR of 3.67% is below the stipulated threshold, a Deposit 
for Shares of N7.4bilion was awaiting approval at the reporting date. This would restore and surpass 
the minimum requirement of 10% as stipulated by the Central Bank of Nigeria.
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                     31-Dec-2021       31-Dec-2021  
                       N`000%
Gross Income from financing and investing transactions       984,729    (13.72)
Return on equity of investment account holders       (278,762)       3.89
Bank's share as a mudarib/equity investor          705,967     (9.84)
Impairment allowance                         (13,681)        0.19
               692,287     (9.65)

Bought in goods and services          (764,037)        10.65  
Value Added                 (71,751)         100%  
Distribution  
Employees  
Salaries and benefits             703,269   -980%
Government  
Taxation             (581,936)      811%
Retained in the Bank  
Replacement of property and equipment / intangible assets         416,747     -581%
Loss for the year             (609,830)        850%  
Total Value Added                  (71,751)         100%  

Value added represents the additional wealth which the Bank has been able to create by its own and
employee’s efforts.






